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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

JOSHUA RAY ABERNATHY,
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NORFOLK. VA
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18U.S.C.§1341
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(Count 1)

18U.S.C.§1957

Unlawful Monetary Transactions

(Count 2)

18U.S.C.§§981&982

Criminal Forfeiture

CRIMINAL INFORMATION

THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES THAT:

INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS

1. At all times relevant to this Criminal Information, defendant JOSHUA RAY

ABERNATHY ("ABERNATHY") was a licensed securities broker, a registered broker dealer,

and a financial advisor. From 2008 through 2014, ABERNATHY worked as an independent

contractor for various financial services companies with his principal place of business located in

Texas and, by 2009, in Virginia.

2. At all relevant times, ABERNATHY also owned and controlled his own

investmentcompanycalled Omega Investment Group. ABERNATHYclaimed that Omega's
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principal place of business was located at 201 West 21st Street, Suite 215,Norfolk, Virginia

23517, and then at 520 West 21st Street, Suite G-2/401, Norfolk, Virginia 23517. The second

address was a P.O. Box located at a UPS store. ABERNATHY was Omega's only employee.

3. In his capacity as an investment advisor, ABERNATHY controlledseveral

accounts. First, ABERNATHY owned and controlled account number xxxxxxxxx7547 at

SunTrust Bank in the name of Omega Investment Group ("Omega"). Second, ABERNATHY

owned and controlled two E-Trade accounts in the name of Josh Abernathy. ABERNATHY

never opened a trading account in the name of Omega.

COUNT ONE

1. The allegations contained in the "Introductory Allegations" section of this

criminal information are realleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

2. From in or about September, 2008 through in or about October, 2014, the exact

dates being unknown, in the Eastern District of Virginia and elsewhere, defendantJOSHUA

RAY ABERNATHY, with the intent to defraud devised and executed a scheme and artifice to

defraud and obtain money and property by materially false pretenses, representations and

promises. This scheme and artifice operated in substance as follows:

THE OBJECT OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD

3. The object of the scheme and artifice to defraud was for ABERNATHY to

wrongfullyobtain and misappropriate money and to retain misappropriated money and property

by:

(a) Holding himself out to the public as a legitimate investment advisor and broker;

(b) Soliciting funds from clients and investors for investment in stock options; and
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(c) Unlawfully converting funds given to him for investments to his own personal use to

fund his lifestyle.

THE EXECUTION OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD

4. ABERNATHY executed his scheme and artifice to defraud by receiving

substantial sums of money for the purpose of investing such funds in the stock market, and then

misappropriating those funds for his own purposes.

C.K.

5. C.K. is a 75 year old widow who lives in Texas with her daughter, K.K.. In or

about 2006, C.K. met ABERNATHY at a dinner party. ABERNATHY convinced C.K. to

remove her retirement funds from her Edward Jones account, and transfer them to his control

with Omega. ABERNATHY told C.K. that her money was invested in "calls" and "puts," and

she trusted him to appropriately invest her retirement funds.

6. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, C.K. transferred her retirement

funds to ABERNATHY for the purpose of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

9/8/2008 Cashier's Check for $34,854.68 payable to E-Trade
Securities (Memo: Josh Abernathy)

10/14/2008 Cashier's Check for $32,434.67 payable to E-Trade
Securities (Memo: Josh Abernathy)

10/1/2013 Check for $8,000.00 payable to Omega

7. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds,

and converted the remainder of the funds to his own personal use. ABERNATHY's small

investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To conceal his theft and his

unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent quarterly statements showing
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that C.K.'s funds were fully invested and increasing in value- sometimes 20% in one quarter.

Each quarter, ABERNATHY sent to C.K. the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail.

8. C.K. lived off of the investment funds, and expected ABERNATHY to send her

$500.00 a month. From in or about January, 2009 through in or about October, 2014,

ABERNATHY periodically paid C.K. her monthly draw. ABERNATHY diverted funds from

other investors to make the monthly payments.

9. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, C.K. suffered substantial

losses.

K.K.

10. K.K. is a single-mother who lives in Texas with her mother, C.K.. Her mother

introduced her to ABERNATHY. K.K. told ABERNATHY that she was not doing well with her

investments. ABERNATHY claimed that he worked for Omega, explained that he could bring

her better returns, and convinced K.K. to cash in her retirement with the U.S. Postal Service and

invest with Omega. K.K. also gave money to ABERNATHY to invest in a college fund for her

daughter.

11. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, K.K. gave funds to

ABERNATHY for the purpose of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

11/5/2008 Cashier's Check for $43,628.85 payable to E-Trade
Securities (Memo: Josh Abernathy)

5/19/2010 Cashier's Check for $6,500.00 payable to E-Trade
Securities (Memo: Josh Abernathy)

12. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds,

and used the majority of the funds to pay his personal living expenses. ABERNATHY's small
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investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To conceal his theft and his

unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent quarterly statements showing

that K.K.'s funds were fully invested and increasing in value. Each quarter, ABERNATHY sent

the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to K.K..

13. In 2012, after getting laid off from herjob, K.K. requested two $1,000

withdrawals from Omega. ABERNATHY diverted funds from other investors to make these two

payments.

14. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, K.K. suffered substantial

losses.

D.M.

15. D.M. lives in Texas and met ABERNATHY at church. In early 2000,

ABERNATHY established a legitimate retirement account for D.M. with Jackson National Life

Insurance Company. In or about 2009, ABERNATHY told D.M. that he worked for Omega, and

advised D.M. that he could obtain better returns on his retirement investments. ABERNATHY

told D.M. that Omega was a strategic investment fund, and that he traded "puts" and "calls" in

companies like Apple, Netflix, and Google.

16. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, D.M. transferred his retirement

funds out of his Jackson account to ABERNATHY for the purpose of investment on the

following dates:

Date Investment

5/1/2009 Cashier's Check for $5,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

8/3/2010 Cashier's Check for $20,00.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

9/8/2010 Cashier's Check for $48,694.81 payable to E-Trade
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(Memo: Josh Abernathy)
9/14/2010 Cashier's Check for $20,000.00 payable to E-Trade

(Memo: Josh Abernathy)
1/18/2011 Cashier's Check for $31,000.00 payable to E-Trade

(Memo: Josh Abernathy)
10/24/2012 Cashier's Check for $45,000.00 payable to E-Trade

(Memo: Josh Abernathy)
12/10/2012 Cashier's Check for $77,245.00 payable to E-Trade

(Memo: Josh Abernathy)
8/6/2013 Check for $20,000.00 payable to Omega

17. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that D.M.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to D.M. each

quarter.

18. In early 2014, D.M. requested a withdrawal from Omega. ABERNATHY

diverted funds from other investors to pay D.M.'s $43,000.00 withdrawal. In or about August

2014, D.M. asked ABERNATHY for a second withdrawal. ABERNATHY came up with

multiple excuses as to why he did not have the money, and eventually stopped returning D.M.'s

calls. D.M. never received a second withdrawal.

19. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, D.M. suffered substantial

losses.
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J.M.

20. J.M. lives in Virginia Beach and met ABERNATHY at church. In or about 2011,

ABERNATHY established a legitimate retirement account for J.M. with Jackson National Life

Insurance Company. After ABERNATHY established J.M.'s annuity, they began to discuss

investments. ABERNATHY told J.M. that he could make a 10-20% return on investment if he

invested directly with ABERNATHY's investment company, Omega.

21. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, J.M. cashed in some annuities and

transferred funds to ABERNATHY for the purposes of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

2/17/2012 Cashier's Check for $25,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

2/7/2013 Cashier's Check for $39,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

11/5/2013 Cashier's Check for $65,000.00 payable to Omega (M

22. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that J.M.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to J.M. each

quarter.

23. J.M. occasionally requested withdrawals from Omega. ABERNATHY diverted

funds from other investors to pay J.M.'s requested $28,835.00 in withdrawals. In or about

September 2014, J.M. asked ABERNATHY for $3,000.00 withdrawal. ABERNATHY sent J.M.
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a check via UPS, but the bank refused to cash the check due to insufficient funds in Omega's

account. J.M. never received this withdrawal.

24. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, J.M. suffered substantial

losses.

D.H.

25. D.H. lives in Texas and met ABERNATHY through another investment advisor.

At the time, D.H. had an established retirement account with Jackson National Life Insurance

Company, and was living off of the $540.00 annuity he received from Jackson. In or about

2011, ABERNATHY told D.H. about Omega and convinced him to transfer his retirement funds

to Omega.

26. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, D.H. transferred his retirement

funds out of his Jackson account to ABERNATHY for the purposes of investment on the

following dates:

Date Investment

8/22/2011 Cashier's Check for $4,950.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

2/28/2012 Cashier's Check for $14,329.82 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

6/20/2012 Cashier's Check for $22,555.25 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

9/16/2013 Check for $20,000.00 payable to Omega
6/09/2014 Check for $28,680.00 payable to Omega

27. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

8
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quarterly statements showing that D.H.'s funds were fully invested and increasing in value.

ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to D.H. each quarter.

28. D.H. used his investment to pay basic living expenses, and expected

ABERNATHY to send him a check for $540.00 a month. From in or about September, 2011,

through in or about September, 2014, ABERNATHY periodically paid D.H. his monthly draw.

ABERNATHY diverted funds from other investors to make these monthly payments.

29. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, D.H. suffered substantial

losses.

D.I.

30. D.I. lives in Virginia Beach and met ABERNATHY through another investor. In

or about January 2012, D.I. transferred his Roth and traditional individual retirementaccounts to

Allianz with ABERNATHY as his broker. Soon thereafter, ABERNATHY approached D.I.

about transferring his investment funds to Omega. ABERNATH claimed that he would invest

D.I.'s funds in stock such as Apple and Netflix. ABERNATHY also misrepresented that there

would be no tax penalties if he transferred his funds out of his Roth IRA to Omega.

31. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, D.I. transferred funds to

ABERNATHY for the purposes of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

2/9/2012 Cashier's Check for $12,200.00 payable to E-Trade
12/7/2012 Cashier's Check for $7,850.00 payable to E-Trade

(Memo: Josh Abernathy)
5/8/2014 Check for $35,200.00 payable to Omega

32. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.
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ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statementsshowing that D.I.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to D.I. each

quarter.

33. In or about August 2014, D.I. asked ABERNATHY to fund a $2,000 withdrawal

each month starting in September, 2014. On or about September 2, 2014, ABERNATHY wired

a $2,000.00 withdrawal to D.I.. ABERNATHY diverted funds from other investors to make this

payment. On or about October 1,2014, D.I. did not receive the scheduled $2,000.00 withdrawal.

D.I. contacted ABERNATHY who explained that the payment would be transferred between the

first and the fifth of the month. On or about October 3, 2014, D.I. received a $2,000.00 check

from ABERNATHY via Federal Express. D.I. attempted to cash the check; however, the bank

refused it due to insufficient funds. D.I. never received this payment.

34. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, D.I. suffered substantial

losses.

W.B.

35. W.B. lives in Chesapeake and met ABERNATHY in or about 2009 at church.

In or about June 2011, ABERNATHY became W.B.'s investment broker. At that time,

ABERNATHY established a legitimate retirement account for W.B. with Allianz Vision.

ABERNATHY also convinced W.B. to invest a portion of his retirement account with Omega.

36. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, W.B. transferred funds to Omega

for the purposes of investment on the following dates:
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Date Investment

3/14/2012 Cashier's Check for $15,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

12/18/2013 Check for $18,000.00 payable to Omega

37. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that W.B.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. After repeated requests from W.B., starting in March 2013, ABERNATHY

sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to W.B. each quarter.

38. In or about July 2014, W.B. asked ABERNATHY to fund a $5,500.00

withdrawal. ABERNATHY repeatedly avoided W.B.'s request for these funds, and on

September 29, 2014, W.B. demanded a $6,000.00 withdrawal. On or about October 3, 2014,

W.B. received a $6,000.00 check from ABERNATHY. W.B. attempted to cash the check;

however, the bank refused it due to insufficient funds. W.B. never received this payment.

39. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, W.B. suffered substantial

losses.

N.N.

40. N.N. lives in Virginia Beach, and met ABERNATHY through her husband and

her employee. ABERNATHY became N.N.'s broker, and established a retirement account

located at Jackson National Life Insurance Company. ABERNATHY also convinced N.N. to

invest with Omega. ABERNATHY talked with N.N. about "call ratios," "hedge betting" and
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"put straddles" which she understood to be betting on both sidesof a transaction so that she

could make money if a stock went either up or down.

41. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, N.N. transferred funds to

ABERNATHY for the purpose of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

3/23/2012 Cashier's Check for $20,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

4/19/2012 Cashier's Check for $1,200.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

5/2/2013 Check for $60,000.00 payable to Omega
8/28/2013 Check for $7,000.00 payable to E-Trade (Memo: Josh

Abernathy)
1/7/2014 Check for $40,000.00 payable to Omega
3/28/2014 Check for $99,518.00 payable to Omega
7/24/2014 Check for $35,000.00 payable to Omega
9/10/2014 Check for $20,000.00 payable to Omega

42. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that N.N.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to N.N. each

quarter.

43. After her initial investment, N.N. reviewed Omega's quarterly statements for over

a year to monitor whether her investment was increasing in value. Relying on the fraudulent

statements showing that her investment was substantially increasing in value, N.N. continued to
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invest additional funds with Omega. Along the way, ABERNATHY lead N.N. to believe that

Omega invested her funds in stocksuch as Google and Apple.

44. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, N.N. suffered substantial

losses.

B.H.

45. B.H. lives in Chesapeake, and met ABERNATHY through another investor. In

early 2012, B.H. hosted a meeting at his home where ABERNATHY could meet potential

investors. At this meeting, ABERNATHY talked about Omega and explained that he could

almost guarantee a 20-25%return on their investment through trade options with companies such

as BIDU, Facebook, Google and Apple. ABERNATHY explained that he liked to conduct

trades on the days that companies were announcing their earnings. ABERNATHY explained

that his investment investment strategy included doing a "put" and a "call" on the stock purchase

at the same time.

46. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, B.H. transferred funds to

ABERNATHY for the purpose of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

3/29/2012 Cashier's Check for $15,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

4/30/2012 Cashier's Check for $20,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

3/21/2013 Cashier's Check for $15,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

10/11/2013 Cashier's Check for $20,000.00 payable to Omega

47. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.
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ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that B.H.'s funds werefully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to B.H. each

quarter.

48. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, B.H. suffered substantial

losses.

M.D.

49. M.D. lives in Chesapeake, and met ABERNATHY through a mutual friend. M.D.

and ABERNATHY became good friends. On occasion, ABERNATHY gave M.D. stock tips

that M.D. acted on and invested in that resulted in big gains. ABERNATHY claimed that his

investment strategy included "strangle options" where an investor trades on both the "call" and

the "put" so that you profit whenever there is any movement in the security.

50. ABERNATHY eventually convinced M.D. to invest in Omega. Based on

ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, M.D. sent funds to ABERNATHY for the purpose of

investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

3/5/2013 Cashier's Check for $20,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

3/12/2013 Cashier's Check for $30,000.00 payable to E-Trade
(Memo: Josh Abernathy)

6/4/2013 Check for $20,000.00 payable to Omega
10/23/2013 Check for $20,000.00 payable to Omega

51. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.
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ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing thatM.D.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to M.D.

each quarter.

52. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, M.D. suffered substantial

losses.

M.P.

53. M.P. lives in Chesapeake, and met ABERNATHY at church. ABERNATHY

became M.P.'s broker, and established a retirement account located at Jackson National Life

Insurance Company. ABERNATHY also convinced M.P. to invest with Omega.

ABERNATHY explained that he had made a lot of money for himselfand others through

Omega. ABERNATHY further stated that therewas a $10,000 minimum investment required to

invest in Omega, and that he split the investor's funds between two group of funds called "put

straddles." ABERNATHY asserted that if one half of the funds went down in value, then the

other half would go up. ABERNATHY stated that they would make money.

54. Based on these misrepresentations, M.P., gave funds to ABERNATHY for the

purpose of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

7/1/2013 Check for $10,000.00 payable to Omega

55. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.
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ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that M.P.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to M.P. each

quarter.

56. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, M.P. suffered substantial

losses.

R.D.

57. R.D. lives in Virginia Beach, and met ABERNATHY through his son, M.D.. In

2011 or 2012, R.D. met ABERNATHY at a meeting for potential investors that ABERNATHY

hosted in the community room of his apartment complex. ABERNATHY convinced R.D. to

invest in Omega claiming that he was trading options on stocks.

58. Based on these misrepresentations, R.D. sent funds to ABERNATHY for the

purpose of investment on the following date:

Date Investment

10/24/2013 Check for $10,000.00 payable to Omega

59. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that R.D.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and
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increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to R.D. each

quarter.

60. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, R.D. suffered substantial

losses.

L.N.

61. L.N. lives in Stuart, Virginia, and met ABERNATHY through his sister N.N. In

or about May 2014, L.N. and ABERNATHY discussed a potential investment in Omega.

ABERNATHY told L.N. that if he moved his Roth IRA to Omega and stayed with Omega for

two years, then Omega would pay the tax liability incurred from for transferring his Roth monies

to Omega. In a later call, ABERNATHY requested L.N.'s money immediately claimingthat

ABERNATHY had invested his own funds and made money towards L.N.'s tax liability. In late

May, 2014, L.N. and ABERNATHY met at a Starbucks to discuss his investment, and L.N.

agreed to invest $25,000 with Omega.

62. Based on these misrepresentations, L.N. sent funds to ABERNATHY for the

purpose of investment on the following date:

Date Investment

7/1/2014 Check for $25,000.00 payable to Omega

63. After receiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created a fraudulent
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quarterly statementshowing that L.N.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and had

increased in value by $3,200.00.

64. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, L.N. suffered substantial

losses.

B.E.

65. B.E. lives in Virginia Beach, and met ABERNATHY at church. In or about

December 2013, B.E.'s husband passed away. After her husband's passing, ABERNATHY

offered to assist her in handling her finances and investments. ABERNATHY told B.E. that if

she invested with him, then she would be able to pay off a second mortgage on her home in five

years. ABERNATHY told B.E. that her money would be invested in a mixture of high and low

risk stocks that included Apple and Facebook. ABERNATHY said her money would be well-

diversified and that he would monitor the investments very closely.

66. Based on ABERNATHY's misrepresentations, B.E. gave funds to ABERNATHY

for the purpose of investment on the following dates:

Date Investment

1/17/2014 Check for $75,000.00 payable to Omega
2/25/2014 Check for $25,000.00 payable to Omega

67. Initially, B.E. intended to invest $75,000 in Omega and $25,000 in Jackson

National Life Insurance Company with ABERNATHY as her broker. ABERNATHY, however,

told B.E. that the $25,000 check to Jackson did not clear. ABERNATHY told her that this was

actually "good news," and recommended that she instead invest the remaining $25,000 in

Omega. B.E. followed ABERNATHY's recommendations.
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68. Afterreceiving these funds, ABERNATHY invested a small portion of the funds

and converted the majority of the funds to pay for his own personal living expenses.

ABERNATHY's small investments through his personal E-Trade account lost money. To

conceal his theft and his unsuccessful trading strategy, ABERNATHY created fraudulent

quarterly statements showing that B.E.'s funds were fully invested in specific stock and

increasing in value. ABERNATHY sent the fraudulent statements via the U.S. mail to B.E. each

quarter.

69. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, B.E. suffered substantial

losses.

70. On or about June 30, 2014, in the Eastern District of Virginia and elsewhere, for

the purpose of executing and attempting to execute above-described scheme and artifice to

defraud, defendant JOSHUA RAY ABERNATHY, knowingly caused to be sent and delivered

by United States Mail, the following matter: a Quarterly Statement dated June 30,2014 from

Omega Investment Group to J.M. that fraudulently represented that his funds were invested in

stock and had increased in value by 2% during that quarter.

71. As a result of ABERNATHY's fraudulent conduct, victims have suffered more

than $1,000,000.00 in losses.

(In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341).
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COUNT TWO

1. The allegations in the "Introductory Allegations" section and Count One are

related and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth here.

2. On or about April 8, 2014, in the Eastern District of Virginia, defendant JOSHUA

RAY ABERNATHY did unlawfully and knowingly engage, attempt to engage, and cause others

to engage and attempt to engage in a monetary transaction by, through and to a financial

institution affecting interstate and foreign commerce, in criminally derived property of a value

greater than $10,000.00, such funds having been derived from a specified unlawful activity, that

is, mail fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341, as follows: a

$26,200.00 check to Mach 5 Cars to rent a luxury automobile.

(In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1957).
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FORFEITURE

1. JOSHUA RAY ABERNATHY, the defendant, if convicted of one or more

violations alleged in Counts One and Two of this Criminal Information, shall forfeit to the

United States, as part of the sentencing pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32.2:

a. Respecting Count One, any property, real or personal, which constitutes or is

derived from proceeds traceable to such violations, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C) and 28

U.S.C. § 2461(c);

b. Respecting Count Two, any property, real or personal, involved in the violation,

or any property traceable to that property, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(1);

c. Any property belonging to the defendant, up to the value of the property subject

to forfeiture, if any property subject to forfeiture: (a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due

diligence; (b) has been transferred to, sold to, or deposited with a third person; (c) has been

placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court; (d) has been substantially diminished in value; or (e)

has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided without difficulty, pursuant to

21 U.S.C. § 853(p).

2. The property subject to forfeiture under paragraph 1 includes, but is not limited

to, the following property:

A sum of money of at least $1,298,841.08 which represents the proceeds of Count One and the

property involved in Count Two, which, upon entry of an order of forfeiture, shall be reduced

to a monetary judgment.

(All in accordance with Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(1); Title 18, United
States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) as incorporated by Title 28, United States Code, Section
2461(c); and Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p)).
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Dana J. Boente

United States Attorney

By: ^nUlulML <?• 0^0-aO^
Melissa E. O'Boyle

Assistant United States Attorney

Virginia State Bar No. 47449

Attorney for the United States

United States Attorney's Office
101 West Main Street, Suite 8000

Norfolk, VA 23510

Office Number - 757-441-6331

Facsimile Number - 757-441-6689

E-Mail Address -

melissa.oboyle@usdoj.gov
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